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Call to Order

Pledge
Roll Call
Approve Agenda

Brief Citizen Comments — for items not on the Agenda
Conflict of Interest

Business

A ol o o

Consider Approval Audit Draft

Consider Approval PDR Monitoring Contract

Approve Young, Graham, Elsenheimer and Wendling Invoice
BS&A Training Discussion

Consider Contractual Rate for Michelle Reardon

N

8. Citizen Comments
9. Board Comments

10. Adjournment

Peninsula Township has several portable hearing devices available for audience members. If you
would like to use one, please ask the Clerk.



September 17, 2015

To the Township Board
Peninsula Township

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental aCtIV'LtIES the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information gmnsula Township for the year
ended March 31, 2015. Professional standards require that we.p f:"'“ e you with information about our

responsibilities under auditing standards generally acceptedj‘ f"‘:lfnited States of America, as well as

certain information related to the planned scope and timi ou“" fit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated February 23, 20&5. .ProfessnonaTWards also require that we
communicate to you the following information relatggrta our audit. “x‘*'

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Proctic

Management is responsible for the seleclion and i { ' ';ia accountmg policies. The significant
shi 3 : 'bed in Nc;hul to the financial statements. No
3 ) exlstmggali‘qes was not changed during
fiscal year 2015. We notéd po'tra i ) Periisla Township during the year for

ant transactions have been

Liepreciation in based on the estimated useful lives of the
Ne evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
capital asset depreti determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial

statements taken as
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficutties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.



Audit Adjustments
For purpases of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction
of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our

auditing procedures. Management has recorded all of our proposed audit adjustments.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accountlng, reportlng, or audltlng matter, whether or not re.solved to our satisfaction, that

such disagreements arose durlng the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from mma';ement that are mw::mﬁ.ed in the management
representation letter dated September 17, 2015.! o oY

Other Issues 7

We generally discuss a variety of matters, mcbd:ng the appﬁhﬂ;{ﬁn of accounting prmCIpIes and auditing
standards, with management each year pfmrtu réwntlon as Pé?gumla Township’s auditor. However,

these discussions occurred in the normal c&me ofuwpmfess:unai iglatlonshap and our responses were
not a condition to our reteption. - .. b o

R

Other Matters s rr:' Y &

ley \ ' 0w

I

We applied certain Ilmlted m‘ﬁg&durﬂ,to managemé'ﬂtfs discussion and analysis and the budgetary
comparison sefisdilies, which m mnu&ﬂﬂsypplemen’m information (RSI) that supplements the basic
fmanaal qaﬁﬁ'@'ﬁ‘& ﬁurp_rncpdﬂfﬂmnsmeﬁgﬂqqm ¥ of management regarding the methods of
preparif :‘.’he information, ﬁn{i com the mfoﬁﬂaﬂon for consistency with management’s response
to our ingiiikies, the basic fmm_mai sta E‘@nts and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic fm%al statements. %jld nobaddlt the RSl and do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the,ﬁSl N
- ,l )
We were engaged to repart on the t*omblnmg balance sheet and combining statement of revenues,
expenditures, and chang@slin fund. halances for the nonmajor governmental funds, which accompany
the financial statements bt f.al@;ﬁbt RSI. With respect to the supplementary information accompanying
the financial statements, we n¥ade certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content,
and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of American, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit
of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.



Communication Regarding Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Peninsula
Township as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered Peninsula Township’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township‘s_internal control.

w1
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpoﬁ ﬁ’crlbed in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal [T ;lhat might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknessé%\/#sugnmﬁgt deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. In addition, because of the mherer."Mltatlons in m\nal control, inciuding the
fraud may occur and not

deF iciency in internal

control that we consider to be a matenal weakness , i

y SN

A deficiency in internal control exists wj}m the design or t.«{ut-ﬁpj of a control does ruwallow

management or employees, in the norr@ e of performm their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a ti %tl\ material* mlgness is a deficiency, or combination
ere ilﬁgsnnab!e pohlblllty that a material

of deficiencies, in internal control, such tha
misstatement of the Towns.haprs financial sta ents w‘ﬁmme preveﬂted or detected and corrected,
10 be'a niaterial weakness;

on a timely basis. We cqﬂﬁi“l‘!ﬁlﬁiuowmg d

*r' e
Material audit adjustmit@fyd fmanﬂ statemen{ gre

_lf
| .I-

uble enicred, or incorrectly recorded expenses.
Cio forrectly recorded transfers between funds.
e Ragoid depregdiition expense on business-type activities.

As is the case wnth ﬁ‘\pﬂf?&mall and medium-sized governmental units, the Township has
historically relied on its independent external auditor to assist with the preparation of the
financial statements, the related notes, and the management’s discussion and analysis as part of
its external financial reporting process. Accordingly, the Township’s ability to prepare financial
statements in accordance with GAAP is based, in part, on its reliance on its external auditor,
who cannot, by definition, be considered part of the Township’s internal controls. Having the
auditor draft the annual financial statements is allowable under current auditing standards and
ethical guidelines and may be the most efficient and effective method for preparation of the
Township’s financial statements. However, when an entity (on its own) lacks the ability to
produce financial statements that conform to GAAP, or when material audit adjustments are



identified by the auditor, auditing standards require that such conditions be communicated in
writing as material weaknesses. This is a repeat finding.

Cause: This condition was caused by the Township’s decision to outsource the preparation of its
annual financial statements to the external auditor rather than incur the costs of obtaining the
necessary training and expertise required for the Township to perform this task internally
because outsourcing the task is considered more cost effective.

Effect: The Township’s accounting records were initially misstated by amounts material to the

Auditor’s Recommendation: We recommend t aﬁageme nue to monitor the relative
costs and benefits of securing the internal et o1 anecessary to develop
material adjustment and prepare a draft gf :%ie Township’s annual fil al statements versus

Management Response: Manag g gspective costs
and benefits of obtaining inter! T <, specifically for the preparation of

implementing such a system would i ' rred to do so. Management will
continue to review the draft financiai: < Jfisto approving them and
Brtheir contenty ' :

Tobin & Co., P.C. )
Certified Public Accountants
September 17, 2015
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Comments and Recommendations

We have audited the basic financial statements and the individual fund financial statements of Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse
County, for the year ended March 31, 2016 and have issued our report thereon. As part of our examination, we made a study and evaluation of the
Township’s system of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary to evaluate the system as required by generally accepted
auditing standards. The purpose of our study and evaluation was to determine the nature, timing and extent ofale auditing procedures necessary for
expressmg an opinion on the Township’s financial statements. Our study and evaluation was more llmlted -wald be necessary to express an
opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole. r a4

Our study and evaluation made for the limited purpose described above would not neces#ly: 4 '%ﬂ,‘iosc all material weaknesses in the
system. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the system of internal control of Peninsydi; Iownsm’ !man as a whole. As a result of our
examination, we respectfully submit the following comments and recommendations. e "

i

General y .9
A - '
AN
Your present Clerk, Treasurer and Deputies maintain receipts joumals @'bursements journals, general ledgers mﬂ sccount books
prescribed in the Uniform Accounting Procedures developed by the State Depsitrant of Treasurf, Management was sent d Mr'mr.hmore specific

recommendations. Comments and recommendations regarding items other grmn t:w: 1**&0unt1ng rec'&i% themselves arc as fo]]own..
Budgets and Procedures . ._:_.; X il -

The required budgets were prepared for the General Fund and Special Revenue Fmih. N
General Fund L . 2

The General Fund is presented on Schedule 1 of this repcrt. The ﬁmd ‘nfﬂgnce increased by $“1§§"¢3“U from the pricr year and totaled
$907,632 at March 31, 2016.

Special Revenue Funds _ i L _ r &

Fire Fund P - .i_

This fund, presented o Sﬁh-uiule 2,is use-i Hl iccount for the Spec voted tax levy for Township fire protection. Revenues consisted
principally of property taxes o651 865, charges for"mwces of $30,809, and, 'rurn(; interest of $977. Expenditures were $1,017,747. The fund
balance at March 31, 2016 was $385,7¢4 [ .

PurchaseofDevelgnmﬂu“‘-m ta F‘l]_t_l_t.i - . ; 18

W =

This ehsgd‘ presented m,fpﬂmdu'u. 3, 18 l.r"tqd !t{in ceount for a speclal voted tax levy for the purchase of development rights. Revenues
consisted of (fitoperty taxes of 1, 132 1!.1.. hnd *ame:f ekt of $2,819. Expenses consisted principally of the purchase of development rights and
debt serymﬁ Thc fund balance at March ‘ﬁ. 2016 was 31, '1171,-%""

Non—ma]or Go m_ptal Funds

Non-majot §i~tenmental funds bal ¥ sheets and revenue and expenditures statements are presented in Schedule 4 and 5.

.“ o

Proprietary/Enterprise F‘ﬁn}j;

The Tower, Sewer, antl W ar/funds are major funds, while the Lighthouse Fund and the Compactor Station Funds are non- -major. These
funds are presented on pages 17 thilish 19 and, 43 and 44, Principally all revenues come from service users or lessees by way of fees, rents and
special assessments. All funds had positive net position at March 31, 2016.

Property Tax Collections

The collection and distribution of the 2015 tax levy was handled in an excellent manner by the Township Treasurer, Paid receipts were filed
in order of payment. Deposits were made timely and intact. Distributions to taxing units during the collection petiod were in accordance with
statutory requirements.

See Schedule 10 for a summary of the 2015 tax levy and collections.



Comments and Recommendations

Payroll Procedures

The Clerk maintains required payroll records. Payroll withholdings were promptly remitted to various agencies and required reports were
properly prepared. It appears that Forms W-2 and/or 1099 were properly utilized.

Ingurance and Surety Bond Coverage

Records reflect that the Township is insured through Municipal Underwriters of Michigg4. .2 ch coverage as fire and extended
coverage, general liability, errors and omissions, workmen’s compensation, equipment and cri ) ords indicate that coverage was
reviewed during the audit year. The Clerk, Treasurer, and their deputies, as well as the Super i
bond covering all employees.

Other Data






INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Township Board
Peninsula Township

Grand Traverse County
Traverse City, Michigan 49684

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the busings{ 4y s 2 _‘;'lmues each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Peninsula Township as of and for the year ended Maxr-!;’SI 20183!'.21-1 the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements as listed in i ,u: tablc of cm

."

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements ‘a‘?’ e "
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these ﬁngﬁa’[ statements in accordance with acce-m&};g principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementafioli-and maintendpce of internal control re]wﬂ.'t uj;b.,-'preparatmn

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material mlszhl‘wnh whether due ‘-*Q\fraud Or error. ot j’
b %2
. 4
Auditor’s Responsibility " : ?-..\_ ¥
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. W 5 subducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, $&ase standards require that we ':hul md perform the audit to obtain reascnable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 11{.1'1‘-""} mlsstatement 1
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ewdenoe ':_ﬁ(_)ut the ;;f:;ﬂmand disclosures im:li¢ Zhancial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment < the risk</ 2 (=aj=rial misstatemeny of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In makmg those risk assessments, the auditor considers, mternal optﬁ‘fm 1eimiitto the. chlity*s preparation and fair presentatmn of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are approptiite in M circumst Ay b {t not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal WW Amcordingly, we expresy _-,Hch opinion, An hpcut also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasgfiibitencys uf xigmﬁcant accounting cl.nmates made by anagement, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statemémﬂ

We believe that the audit ewd-nce et Imn. :rht.um et hn‘ufﬁment and approprmtn provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions b .‘w _ V.f,-’

In our opinion, tha il m;i‘lts "cfﬁTca"h'ubp‘-e present fairly, 4 all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the):-mness-type act{-t'ilqu, Snch major Wuml the aggregate remaining fund information of Peninsula Township, as of March 31, 2016,
and the respiititve changes in ﬁnma.['muum aridl, %upphcablc cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
prmmp]e.ﬂ r;mrsrally accepted in the Ufrmﬂ !Lates of Arﬁﬂ'iﬂh.

Other Matters- - F 4

Accountmg prineiple: ‘p:herally accepted in ttu Umted States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary
comparison informatios & pages 9 through 13 |und 33 through 43 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the’ “buis Snancial stajgnzents, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial repiiiiiy for placig the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedumc Wit wqulred supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consistec! '!ﬂ" ‘Jquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s ms}a_mnses to our inquities, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do ot express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Peninsula Township’s basic
financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information Jis been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, includi 3 ing and reconciling such
siifipthents or t the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted$: the United States of Americe. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all pepihal 13ig ects, in relation to the basic financial
i

TOBIN & CO., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
Traverse City, Michigan
July 6, 2016



Peninsula Township Management Discussion and Analysis Letter

As the Township Beard of Peninsula Township, we offer readers of the Township’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of Peninsula Township for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016.

Financial Highlights

The assets of Peninsula Township exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $21 42kh64 Of this amount, $5,546,111 may
be used to meet the Township’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, Township’s governmental funds reported combined ending £ ‘balances of $3,986,824, a decrease of
$170,161 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 23% of the total amount, $907,632 15,#;!]‘*51‘ spending at the Township’s discretion.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $907,63%spr 113% of‘&.r'thtq] general fund expenditures.
o A

The Township’s total long-term debt decreased by $1,125,320 during the current ﬁscg]l;ffm{. .

/
o
A

Overview of the Financial Statements /_-.'5-_'. &

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an iniroduction to Penmmﬂa 'l‘c‘innshlp ] basn, “financial statements. The 'Tn.w!,hlp 8 basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statsgats. 2) fund famcial statements, and 3 wotes to the financial
statements, This report also contains other supplementary information, in addition to Hae .;mc,&mmal statements themselve®

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are des1g1u ,a provide readers with a broad overview of the
Township’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector brh.-ass Rl |

k

The statement of net posmon presents information on all of the 1 7 _,*a'} 37assets and llabllltles, Wit t?ﬂr diffefence between the two reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may servi:as au,'z:‘m tmcawr of whether the TM‘nshlp s financial pesition is improving
or deteriorating. k. X W &

The statement of activities presents mformatlon | showing how the Towﬁ‘np positiof- :! wm;,,«!dunng the most recent fiscal year. All changes in
net position are reported as soon as the w ijsvent giving rise to thl s-“ygoccurs regaéu? css of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported mdﬁﬁ’“ﬁf ter tar some items that wiﬂ only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide fi pﬁmh_g.f-im:m ents d(im‘rmsh functions of thc "ownship that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues friom offies fupctions that Wy intended to recover i wrzsignificant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.
The governmental activities of the l'ulJrrﬁfp inchud ﬁ:..npral government, pub-- safety, road projects, sanitation, and recreation. The business-type

activities of the Township include lm-lduﬁ'ﬁﬁ:pnc Hﬂ m and water wtem
The government-‘mﬂn wﬂmn ents L-EHWEI on nages |2 w4 of this report.
Afundisa iiﬂupmg of retated accdum ﬂmt s uaed WIam control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.

Peninsulg’ fmh.:lshlp, like other state and. To0k! governmants. WsexTund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirginenrs, of the funds of the Towa;uﬁip can be dlv'iﬁgl”mto three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds:

Governmental fuiﬂh f‘overnmental funds a;ti.l}cd to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide fingsglll statements. Howeﬁ'#l unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and U'i!ﬁ\*ws of spendable fources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be usefill u:-naluat]ng a g(}w.'mment’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governme.mli Faasreld &5 natrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds Wi# similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better undersiand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the govemmentdf fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



Peninsula Township maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet
and in the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Fire Fund and Purchase of
Development Rights Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The Township adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, special revenue funds, and debt service funds. Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for the general fund and other governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
Y

Proprietary funds: Peninsula Township maintains six proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to reportaﬁaati functions presented as business-

type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Township uses an enterprise fund to ag‘mt for its tower rental, lighthouse rental,

water and sewer, and compactor station activities. /_‘J_
i

P F
Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties firlside lhu H“" gmment. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds areq.iu available s-t*port the Township’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for propnetary ﬂads LY

: -.

W
-
3

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 20 of this repori:

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information thﬂh é‘isentlal to a ] understanding of the &.’a{ﬂ pmmdaﬂ in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial glaternon: =>can be foun! aM\pages 21 through 31 of’ i&i )eport

Government-wide Financial Analysis "._ v R

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s ﬂHL .nr‘ posmon In the case of Peninsula Township,
assets exceeded liabilities by $21,421,364 at the close of the mt l'taoent fiscal year, e N

A significant portion of the Township’s net position, fifty-nine puwat; 2y i#ns its investment in cap 1\1 mmta@wh as development rights, land,
buildings, machmery, and equipment, less any related debt used to,.‘:;qm‘re Ui msets that are still outstalihe, The Township used these cap1ta1
assets to prowde services to citizens; consequently, these assets are 1:a{ availabit: ﬁrt e spending. Aﬁ Javugh the Township’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the inesources F2C o ¥ ey thig debt must be provided from other sources, since

the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 11qu1date these l1ab111t1eu. AP /
; k¥ 4 o
= A i
\ . Township’s Net Position
. 2016 2015
{!Q:-'r;‘mmental Busmess -Type W Governmental Business-Type
AllisiGe: L. Activities JFoal Activities Activities Total
Current and Other Assata $  a0namy v 2l 6227329  § 4175565 $ 2161365 § 6,336,930
Capital Assetsd 08176640 5994534 25,812,198 19,623,403 6.000.161 25.623.564
Tom .am.;u T 8206430 32,039,527 23.798.968 8,161,526 31.960.494
Long- b= Lﬂlih‘liﬁ 7,500826 3970665 10,331,591 8,222,487 3,065,985 11,288,472
Other Liabilities 38 _,ﬁﬂg T 251963 286,572 44.998 235.727 280,725
Total Liabilities 7395395 3,222,628 10.618.163 8.267.485 3.301.712 11.569.197
Net Position: Y. .
Invested in Capital Assets - /]! 456 738 3,418,515 15,875,253 11,400,916 3,389,501 14,790,417
Restricted - 3,079,192 . 3,079,192 3,404,613 - 3,404,613
Unrestricted B 907.632 1,559,287 2,466,919 725954 1.470313 2,196,267
Total Net Position $ 16,443,562 $ 4977802 $ 21421364 $ 15531483 § 4859814 § 20,391,297

An additional portion of the Township’s position, one percent, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
The remaining balance of unassigned net position ($2,466,919) may be used to meet the Township’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

10



At the end of the current fiscal year, the Township is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the government as
a whole, as well as for its separatc governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the Township’s net position by $885,661, accounting for 88% of the total growth in the
net position of the Township.

2016 2015
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities - Activities Total
Program Revenues ik
Charges for Services $ 185,581 § 838,132 $ 1,023,713 $ 30§ 743,964 $§ 1,047,764
Operating Grants and r S
Contributions - - = c,," -2 . - - -
General Revenues c:\r - O
Property Taxes 2,644,201 . 2,644,%%.'\ X ,\ 2,573,656 %7 z 2,573,656
State Shared Revenues 408,235 . 408,285 . " 415,098 <« - 415,098
Unrestricted Investments y i ""‘
Earnings 12,894 7,082 /_}9,976 28,790 01 44,891
Miscellaneous 124,780 90,673 7,{_;_ 215453 __ 69.862 G & 74.426
Titel Rexenuss 3,375,601 935,387 ABESR o 90391206 T64¢® 4155835
Program Expenses b J <
Legislative 50,060 - 50,060 . & 40,475 40,475
General Government 724,205 - 724205 . - 659,696 - 659,696
Public Safety 1,026,818 - 1,026,818 45,115 - 745,115
Public Works 7,745 667850 675,644 o GIlew 571,543 578,253
Recreation and Cultural 93,235 - 93,235 185254 - 189,354
Interest on Long-term =L Y -4
Debt 587.967 W AT . £ 299.101 - 299.101
Total Expenses 24 667,899 Wil 3157929 .. 1940451 571,543 2,511,994
‘/. % - ; ( .’ ﬁ" i
Change in Net Position L 885,661 ! 267,988 W, 1,153,649 1,450,755 193,086 1,643,841
P ] .,
Net Position — Beginning of Year . 15.557.901 . 4709814 — 0267715 14,080,728 4.666.728 18.747.456

Net Position — End of Year $ 1600562 /8 Wiena0y  § MA21364 S 15531483 S 4859814 § 20391297

Business-type actiillisl Biiitisgme nc:ivirii*q; Wiseased the Ioh’hshﬂi‘#'ﬁet position by $267,988, accounting for 23% of the total growth in the
Township’s ne_&_‘;g'rsition. . b b

Financial A salysis of the Township“s Il unils

As noted ear]i;i-.;._'lﬁ'i;’[ownship used fund ai:p_a_n_wting to er;,ufe and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental fundst T focus of the Town:li's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Sugh jfiformation is use il in assessing the Township’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may

serve as a useful measure uf i Wpwnship’s nes resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fisci yeliz #88 Township’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $3,986,824, a decrease of
$170,161 in comparison with the prit year.
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Approximately 23% of the total amount, $907,632, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the Township’s discretion.
The remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for a variety of
other restricted purposes.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Township. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was
$907,632 and the total fund balance was $907,632. The fund balance of the Township’s general fund increased by $155,260 during the current fiscal
year.

Details of the Township’s General Fund are contained in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Chanm‘,&in Fund Balance on page 16.

Proprietary funds: The Township’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the ﬁ‘yemment-ﬁude financial statements, but in
more detail. . N

i e

Enterprise Funds at the end of the year amounted to $4,977,802. The total increase in net posﬂuﬁ:ﬁias $2B‘.'"§&§§Other factors concerning the
finances of the fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the Township’s busmess*-; ’,-e activitiess.

Fooo ~:‘-
Ve

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

'ea
Lam,

Capital assets: The Township’s investment in capital asscts for its govemmentaljﬂ’ business type activities as of March 11;‘5{]]6 amounts to
$25,812,195 (net of accumulaied depreciation). This investment in capital asscﬁ"\aludcs (land, gurchase of development r\l.“".ﬁ ahujidding and
improvements, sewer and water systems, machinery and equipment, park f; s ig). The Towr»ﬁ‘gp s investment in capltd‘n #&'MS for the current
fiscal year increased by $188,631. 5

e

backed by the ful] faith and credit of the government

Additional information on the Township’s long-term debt can be fmd in '.‘h:mmon pages 28 and fﬂi

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets 7 1 e 7
We anticipate no major changes in the buﬂﬁ&ifﬂ 20172018.1f taxable '-'1}“{ contlnue as in, i]mr years, revenues should increase slightly with
similar expenditures. No major expenuiﬂi'l'? I!I'lt‘n'ﬂqpated for 2016/201% sca] year. '

A \)

L] f
b . i i

Requests for Information _
This financial report is des1gned to pru%a. cncmlha[w_gw of Peninsula Torh'- ~§fl1p s finances for all those with an interest in the Township’s
finances. Questions concerning any of the :aauﬁmm this repo:t,m!requests for additicnal financial information should be addressed to
the Supervisor, Treasureypue £ lerk of Penmwh annshlpi Gﬂ_ﬁ f‘lﬁw.r.ﬂmd Traverse City, Michigan 49686 or you may phone us at

231-223-7322. S N

i Ty - ",
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Peninsula Township
Statement of Net Position
March 31, 2016

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable » =
Prepaid Items 11,133
Due from Other Units ; 101,903
Due from Other Funds S 26,942

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Special Assessments Receivable (long-term)
Non Depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets (net)

Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses. f o 34,609
Due to Other Funds K -
Long-term Liabilities, Net of Disceints
Due Within One Year | 1,060,000
Due in More Than One Y#ar 6,300,926
Total Liabilities 7.395.535
Net Position
Invested in (Fibital Assets and Intamibile 12,456,738
3,079,192
— 907,632

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Total

455,325

8200430

140 189
52,402
11,257

110,684

455,325
18,514,981

5.994.534 7,207.217

32,039,527

39,515 74,124
212,448 212,448
238,942 1,298,942
2,731,723 9.032.649
3.222.628 10,618,163
3,418,515 15,875,253
- 3,079,192
1,559,287 2,466,919
$ 21421364

3 16443562 § 4.977.802



Peninsula Township
Statement of Activities
March 31, 2016

Net (Expenses) Revenues
Program Revenues and Changes in 3 Position
Fees and Operating & i
Charges For  Capital Grants & Governmengd, - Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activitjghi Activities Total
AR
Governmental Activities: 47
\".I 1 b
Legislative $ 50,060 5 - § . '*—__(50,060) by N - 5 (50,060)
General Government 724,205 154,772 P 9,433) So- (569,433)
Public Safety 1,026,818 30,809 il - ~ (996,009) LD & (996,009}
Public Works 7,745 - y - (7,745) 5 ﬁ__-_»-}_ (7,745)
Recreation and Cultural 93,235 - y "%.(93,235) <, 493,235)
Interest on Long-term Debt 587.967 Y 1££7.967) = s (587.967)
Total Governmental Activities 2,490,030 185,581 e 004.d%) -4 __(2304.449)
Business-type Activities: = -
Water Fund 354,485 516 . - 38,031 38,031
Sewer Fund 247,162 T4 1 i E . - (31,006) (31,006}
Other Enterprise Funds 66,252 225460 | - - Tt 163,208 163,208
Y ==
Total Business-type Activitics 667.899 838,152 e, - 170,233 170,233
\_‘ . 3 F " A _\- s _‘I --.:;"h ." v
Total $3,157920  $.1023713°\ $ 4 - HiH04.449) 170,233 (2.134,216)
General Revenués i
Taxes 4" 2,644 201 2,644 201
State Shared Hetennes 408,235 - 408,235
Investment Earnlfgs 12,894 7,082 19,976
Miscellaneous 124,780 90.673 215453
Tkl General Raenues 3,190,110 97.755 3,287,865
Change in Net Pt 885,661 267,988 1,153,649
Net Position — Beginning 15,531,483 4859814 20,391,297
Py Period Adjustment 26418 (150,000) (123.582)

Net #asition — Ending

3 16443562 $ 4977802 § 21.421,364

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Peninsula Township
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

March 31, 2016
Purchase of
Development
General Fire Rights Fund
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ B03600 § 363,660
Taxes Receivable 17,586 19,981
Accounts Receivable - 3,727
Prepaid Items 1,569 8,977
Due from State 58,783 B
Due from Other Funds 3,073
Duge from Other Units 43.120
Total 3§ 927,731

Liabilities and Fund Equity

Liabilities:

Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
Funds Funds

$ 943 196 $ 3,770,382
12,722 85,676
21,670 25,397
587 11,133
- 58,783
26,942

43.120

4.021.433

Accounts Payable and Other Accruals 3,939 34,609
Due to Other Funds =
Total 3.939 34,609
Fund Equity:
Fund Balance — Restricted > - . z
Fund Balance — Committed - 1,717,787 975,621 3,079,192
Fund Balance — Unassigned 907,632 - - - 907,632
Total 907.632 1.717.787 975,621 3,986,824
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $ 1.717,797 § 979,560
Amounts reported§ PReveRt L. activitics Mt L powition are different because:
and i .| i e ctivities are not financial resources and therefore
19,817,664
and therefore are not reported in the funds {7.360,926)
Net position of g 3 16,443,562

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and Permits
State Grants

Charges for Services
Interest and Rents
Other

Total

Expenditures

Legislative

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Recreation and Culture
Other

Capital Outlay

Debt Service

Total

Excess Revenues (Expenditures)

Other Financing Sources (Uses) .
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers (Outy -~
Total

Excess Revenues,jfspendiiutes ) dind
Other Fing#iing Sources (T 4c<)

“/ T
Fund Bajjf'ee — Beginning of Year

Fund Balance™; El,,d' of Year

Peninsula Township

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Governmental funds Wit capital outlays as edpenditures. However, in the statement of activities

This is the amount b)wrs.c‘a capital out|4#s exceeded depreciation in the current year.

Repayment of note principal is ag <%

Purchase of Other Total
Development  Governmental Governmental
General Fire Rights Fund __Funds Funds
i i
/.,.-:.."). -
$ 443959 § 681,845 $ ],138,1(‘5').'1..?l - $ 389,245 $ 2,644,201
25,760 - /‘_/' Feat . 25,760
408,235 - s - . 408,235
- 30809 407 ST 129012 159,321
4,998 977 b § 2819 N 011,280 20,074
58.088 49.1974/71_‘5'! : 'f_ - o xg315 117.600
L E . %
941,040 7628% 11140971 536 3375691
50,060 - 7 50,060
402,513 14,956 & 424,955
151,153 97,166 904,331
# 7,745 7,745
e - 93,235 93,235
183525, - . 182,523
12"(3"‘)!'” e 361,735 Ty ?-f‘ - 374,344
- T 906,585~ __ 542944 1.449.528
798,8535‘ ] : i - 971/4:3@0 756,086 3.486.721
142,182 " 0A254919) 126,941 (225.234) (111,030)
48,078 N S - 37,693 85,771
(35,000) j i - - (109.902) (144.902)
Beiz07s - - (72.209) (59.131)
' 155,260 (254,919 226,941 (297,443) (170,161)
asfa77 640,703 1,490,846 1,273,064
§_907632 § 385784 § 1717787 § 975621
the cost of those asazti Swer their estimatéd usefui lives in reported as depreciation expense.
194,261
sn‘é"r,_r;ture in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities m ¢ statement of net position. This is the amount of repayment 861.561
$ 885661

;
Change in net position of governmental activities.

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Peninsula Township
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
March 31, 2016

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from County
Accounts Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Prepaid Items
Due from Other Funds

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Special Assessments Receivable (long-term)
Depreciable Capital Assets (net)

Total Assets
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Due to Other Funds ;

Long-term Liabilities, Net of Discadints:
Due Within One Year | '
Due in More Than One Y&ar -

Total Liabilities
Net Position

Invested in Gljiital Assets and Iniailgﬂ'ilp B cscts, e ated Debt
Unrestriciéd [ T

F

Total et PFisition

Business-type Activitigiizs : !}Q; wprise Funds
i iﬁ Total

v Otfier
! .. [Enterprise Enterprise
Water Fund Sew_f,f,mt‘ir;_ . _ Funds Funds
. 4 N
$ 574,116 A$  \225063 §. 151,504 § 1,450,773
2,832 L0 v 5949 h - 8,781
15597 © 13,519 . 29,116
2610 19,792 TR, 5240
. - \ 2 128 %> 124
. 209,375 - i 209375
625,155 & oL "473.698 651,718V __ 1750571
237,784 217,541 - 455,325
3,600,445 2132255 255834 __ 5994534
4.453,384 2,820 404 907,552 8,200,430
20,850 18,158 507 39,515
209,375 3,073 212,448
N

1:.193,942 45,000 238,942
—_Thgz 513,000 - 2,731,723
__A42.890 576,158 3,580 3222 628
1,425,564 1,797,796 195,155 3,418,515
394,930 455,540 708.817 1,559.287
$ 1820494 § 2253336 § 903972 § 4,977,800

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Operating Revenues

Charges for Services
Special Assessments
Rental Income

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses

Contracted Services
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss}

Non Operating Revenue (Expenses
Interest Income

Net Non Operating Revenues (Expenrxt;}
Income Before Contributions and Y iufers
Transfers In

Change in Net Position

Net Position at@leginning of Yeu
L£ i

Prior Peritw) Sediustment
£ :

Net Position ai Egﬂ qf Year

Peninsula Township
Statemnent of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Business-type Activitig- Exieprise Funds

y G Other Total

SN Enterprise Enterprise

Water Fund Sewsf Fumi: Funds Funds

- d _ e
§ 345742 $'~\;_'£67,898 TLE k04,100 $ 617,740

46,774 o @828 . - 95,032
&R - B0 125360
398516 216,156 22046 . 838132
% b W
<« : ) 4‘}:. _\ 3 ;./;,.
261,308 . .43%6,058% 54562 7 491,923
93.182 L) 71104 11,690 175.976

354485 L Rl162 66,252 667.899

N
4 T

38031 (GYE. ¢ 163008 170,233
W e i 3,827 7.082
" 1498 40 1357 3827 7.082
W 39,529 (29,249) 167,035 177,315

} ':.'zd.rééa 2693 85287 90,673

" am (26,556) 252,322 267,988
1,928,272 2,279,892 651,650 4,859,814
(150,000) . - (150,000)

1,820,4 § 2253336 § 903972  $4.977,802

See Independent Audilor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Operating Activities

Collections of Charges for Services
Collections of Special Assessments
Collections of Rental Income

Collections of Interest
Deduct Expenses Using Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Capital Financing Activities

Acquisition of Capital Assets
Principal Payments

Non Capital Financing Activities
Transfers In (Out)

Net Cash Flow Provided by (Usedi
by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Casn

Balance of Cash — Beginning of Year

Balance of Cash -l ol ¥

Net Incogie (lgss)

Add Depre@iitiun and Amortization
Decrease (Inctgass) in Receivables
Decrease {Increiiue] iis Prepaids
Increase (Decrease) it Puyables

Net Cash Flow from Opetalifiy Activitis

Peninsula Township
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Business-tvpe Activijiss— Enterprise Fupds
-9 Other Total
: Enterprise Enterprise
Water Fund iélm % Funds Funds
“ ' . b i ¥
$ 3457420008 167,898 $ f0WW0 5 617,740
464 * 48,258 k. N 95,032
& - - 125,360 = 125,360
AL %408 %, 1,757 3,827 . 7,082
a2 {13i.890) (51,547) Haas13
S . y- " )_;‘
139,09, 4579023 181,740 ¥'__400,701
: - (170,351) (170,351)
(195,210 (48620 - (235,841)
b 72,603 D 03 85.287 90.673
DL(192517) (37.938) (85.064) (315.519)
152,5,79) 41,085 96,676 85,182
4475159 170,421 554,918 1,400,498
3622580 $ 211506 § 651504  $1.485680
$ 39529 $ (29249) $ 167,035 $ 177315
93,182 71,104 11,690 175,976
2,832 5,951 . 8,783
- - 0y (1)
{6,153) (410) 3.016 (3.547)
8 120300 § 47396 § 181740 § 358526

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
March 31, 2016

Assets
Cash and Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to Other Governments

Due to Other Funds
Undistributed Taxes and Interest
Total Liabilities

Net Position

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Finangial Statements
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NOTE 1 -

Peninsula Township
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Peninsula Township (the “Township™), conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governmental units, The following is a summary of the significant policies: y .
P S

A. Financial Reporting Entity &

AN
Peninsula Township is a general law township located in Grand Traverse Courp{ﬁ!ﬁéﬁigﬁt-,__Populations as of the 2010 census was
5,433, and the current taxable valuation of the year of audit was $632,533,23’§; " o T
The Township’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all Wshipfﬂperations. Th&:_;::»‘ibg’ia for including organizations
within the Township’s reporting entity, as set forth in GASB No. 14,57 fiaan&,ral Reporting E’uh‘p—_'i_jncludes oversight
responsibility, fiscal dependency and whether the financial statemedg®’ would b& misleading if data weee @t included.
o R
Based on the above criteria, there are no other organizations Al¢iiided in these flaancial statements.
T .'1 e k- N

Sewer and Water System Operations h N

The Township entered into a master sewer agreement effective July 1,1 ‘;:_-ﬁ_.:f_-"’-ﬂ'ﬂ';)ugh June 30, 2041 with the City of Traverse City,
the Townships of Acme and Garfield in Grapd Traverse County, with the ¥awiship of Elmwood in Leelanau County, and Grand
Traversc County. This master sewer agreeme; Hiefines the allocation of costs yfistablishes certain rights and responsibilities with
respect to the wastewater treatment plant and & Syatem. Grand Traverse Coigjy" the owner of the treatment plant and the City
of Traverse City is the owner of all multi-user fﬂﬁ!ﬁih&;!‘lﬁ- townships have the optihi o pusthase the facility when certain bonds

issued by Grand Traverse County are retired. % L5 v "E;_ o

oh
re )
T b Y
: )

The City of Traverse City is the exclusive manager ut"zhe plant ﬁ.}nh—:,l'taaﬁt to irgglf"and the townships. As the exclusive manager,
the City of Traverse City has the obligation to fully infierm ardadvise toviiiliijii & to the treatment plant’s operation and the
townships shall have thg‘ﬂiﬁ?;?mmmt on all matteids wilptiected with thc;lﬁi'inisu'ation of the plant.

&
Further informatigli £an be fou ndlljl-']mlfe 4.
4 ‘ ~ I-'.: U I,I
B. Govmmmmvi&‘m_ﬂgi_ﬂlmgﬂm Statements
The govemment—w:de.f.'m_nﬁ.p.] 5m.t.;uthe statemgn_f," ;ﬁ"net position and the statement of activities) report information on
all of themanfiduciary ucri'\lﬁ g the prim NS For the most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed
EifinHESE S iats. Govertegemlial activities, which®ermally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
< wuported sepat _J.'_'ﬁw_l hﬁ:ﬂinﬂ-&m activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

% - =

-

. )
. The statement of actftiﬁm.duazwnsua:u;lﬁﬂg:ﬁ:ée to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program
- tevenues. Direct expensul i those that\m_v.é!early identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
" éligrges to customers or afiili&mts who‘;#."chase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
“Ystion or segment and 2)'p':ﬁlfj|ts and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
paniitiilie: function or segmetil Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
reventgs - f

Separate ﬁmﬁiﬁ.ﬂ_statemjﬁ!é are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from s Ravéirment-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise
funds are reporte't!'_llm'i;éparate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The government-wide statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, except for agency funds which do not have a measurement focus.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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Peninsula Township
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures and claims and judgments,
are recorded onty when payment is due. P

4 ,'
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental revenues and interest asso-:-i,‘h.,ﬂ w1th the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of gie vurrent fiscal period. Only the portion of
special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered #63" e 'rgtfble to accrual as revenue of the
current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and axgﬁaﬁle ong 1'Irih:n cash is received by the
government. 2

The government reports the following major governmental funds: :
The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund, lti:,.':ounts for all ﬁnanc:la] resources of thb i'wmshlp, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. . - T :

il

The Fire Fund accounts for operations of the Township ﬁre depar:fru 21 ﬂ\

The government reports the following major pro:uiﬁtrx._
The Sewer Fund accounts for the operation of the Iuwnshlp ¥ mlﬂ, stem and treg@mt plant.

The Water Fund accounts for the operatlon of the Tovmshlp .'hé,tcr maf by m.:f pu-afpmg facilities.

HT
-

Additionally, the Tmm’shmf@mﬂi tn\e following fund tyres 4

The Agency Fm:lr ngvount for thc or&'hct:on and dlsbursen\mts of taxes and other monies due to other units of government and

individuals. ¢

Private-sector standardﬁ‘ ti!' m:nuu&lb.gmﬂ’ﬂnmml repomnglssued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the

goven W]dc and pmprmt,uy{iund Tirrameinl JBisHIEbfo the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict

aidance v ﬂwﬁo.\mm ental Anmpnt-ng Standards Bfard. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
 sector guidante: ﬁ{r@: husmﬂiswm.hwtles and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected

" not to follow Subsm!'l‘ud.tl:—‘-EMmH dance

s g general rule the eﬂ\eg_ot interfund a:.twﬁy has been eliminated from the govemment—mde financial statements. Exceptions to
iz general rule are charges Bitween the Zovernment’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government.
""-.;lﬁnatmn of these chaxg:'i: Fould distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounu.i l:ported as progrs,iﬁ sevenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2)
operating s and contn}.;ll;mons, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
TESOUTCES aiv: |'q1nrted as J#neral revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary fund~‘ tﬁﬂlmgulsh operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating jtems. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the sewer and water enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
The enterprise funds also recognize as operating revenues the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
€Xpenses.

When both restricted and vnrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Township’s policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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Peninsula Township
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity
Deposits and Investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand Qﬂpmﬁilnd short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. y

State statutes authorize the government to deposit in the accounts of federally m:n,hﬁhun. credit unions, and savings and loan
associations, and to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain commel paper\tpﬁ‘ghase agreements, banker’
acceptances, and mutual funds composed of otherwise legal investments,

\‘_.d' r‘"

Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market pnces/ 'f..duc is !hc amount aﬂﬂa financial instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. //__ G 2

T oo
L

Receivables and Payables

All receivables and payables are reported at their gross value and whike apprgprw:-;lre reduced by the estil}f;-;ied portion that is
expected to be uncollectible. W ] ¢

'»r

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangw,:%ts outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as either “due to/from other funds? )bﬁ the current portion of intwi¥.:88 Joans) or “advances to/from other funds” (e.g.,
the non-current portion of interfund loans). All: 1l*4;.utstandmg balances betwsy;: #imds are reported as “due to/from other funds”.
Any residual balances outstanding between the _{gﬂ—tw}ﬂrm] activities and bUSIIIMWﬂUeS are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as “internal balances”. | _ 5

|.'

Prepaids -, ,‘_', - o
¥ = ;

Certain payments to vendiil ﬂ:ﬂbm costs applicable to‘ﬂﬁm aocounung pel‘im!s and are recorded as prepaid items in both

government-wide ani S ﬁnﬂlﬂﬂ statements W, 4
Capital Assﬁ/ e ]

.4

Capital assets, whlch m:.'b;li-: pmpmyr pIant equipment and \uurr and sewer systems, are reported in the applicable governmental

or business-type activitity cxlurmng in e yi.}mment-mde ﬂmncwl statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as

assets.adithyan initial, mdwklgﬂ,w,r-' n?’ﬂ‘l'ﬂ}n _,ml,md an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
lﬁﬁ]ﬁﬂl'ﬂ‘ﬂﬂ patimated Hﬂﬂmu] cost if purchimed ur constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value

,.tt the date of ﬂuq:{qm. e

. l b

_ The costs of normal l’rm‘ulﬂn ance and fefllifssc do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not

i.‘apltahzcd 4

\lﬂﬁt outlays for capital aﬁﬂjd\!and 1mpr0vements are capitalized as pro_]ects are constructed. Interest incurred during the

cor npui sion phase of capital Wesets of business-type activities, if any, is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets

constiyeed: No such intereyt €tpense was incurred during the cutrent fiscal year. Capital assets of the primary government are

deprecid mhﬂmg the sn-algh line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Sewer and Water Systems 50 — years
Land Improvements 20 - years
Buildings 40 - years
Building Improvements 25 —years
Towers 25 - years
Vehicles 10 - years
Office Furniture 10 - yecars
Equipment 5 - years
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Peninsula Township
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet, when applicable, will report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position/fund
balance that applies to future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resourcesfxpense/expenditure) until then.
Currently, the Township does not have any items of this type that qualify as deferred outﬂ‘émh'{ﬁcsources.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the balance sheet, when azgfi==ble, will sometime report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement elemes® repicints an acquisition of net position/fund
balance that applies to future period and so will not be recognized as an inflo uresoulus{twenue) until them. Currently, the
Township does not have any items of this type that qualify as deferred 1nﬂow~¢ rsf resources,

Long-term Obligations o

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary ﬁJMpes in the fund financial statements ?ﬂ-.:g—term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicaltic spvernmental Bgtivities, business-type actiiis. or;‘proprletary
fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and djérocsis, 25 well as 1ssmﬁ.1ce costs, are deferred and Sl ntized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payab | ‘-x.*;gpnncd mncthe applicable bond pn‘r',mum or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized ov{w ﬂ:_l,_g: ;qrm of the'related debt.

In the fund financial statements, govemmental fund types recognize bond grrmﬁums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
durlng the current period. The face amount uf' ekt issued is reported as other @illsing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources wiithe discounts on debt issuan«i& e reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual dkt m :s-m reoewed are Teported 4s febt. se;moe expenditures.

und Equity o _-'.'_: -
Fund balances of the governmenta] funds are class1ﬁeu s folk":.fs g _-_, : /,‘7"
/
Nonspendable — amqﬁ;lﬁ*‘tbmm he spent either becau,e they are in non,Jpendable form or because they are legally or
contractually reqr,h 0 he md.frﬁ.lmﬂ intact.

Restricted —mnou'!f,q '!.‘[iul can be -.ps’:.hl.tmly for specific purpg-..n.s beeause of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or
because of constramrsdl.t@m l:xzc:ﬂﬂly 1mposed by credltora, g‘r.mtors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments. . W i "

mmumfa—mrs that wn.ﬂmd LmJy for apa‘j 3 ;urposes determined by a formal action of the Township Board. The
i ownshlp Bowal ilrmg highest |oil ﬁ,sifx ision-making authority for the Township. Commitments may be established, modified,
or rescinded onlyﬂmﬂi ordinancos {rﬂsolutlons approved by the Township Board,

_ Asszgned amounts malldi:‘mt meet the wrua to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for
. Mpecific purposes. All such Hslignments ¢#: be made only with unanimous approval of all committed members,

Asf idgrch 31, 2016, fund Belances are composed of the following:

Purchase of Other Total
General Fire Development  Governmental Governmental
- / Fund Fund Rights Fund Funds Funds
Restricted . 3 - § - 8 - 3 - $ -
Committed ) - 385,784 1,717,787 975,621 3,079,192
Unassigned _ 907.632 - - - 907,632
Total Fund Balances $ 907632 § 385784 § 1,717,787 $ 975621 $3,986,824

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the Township
considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned
fund balances are available, the Township considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Township Board has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment
actions.
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Peninsula Township
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prdiples requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and di#gf satdef contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expegé_'u,d’uring the reporting period. Actual results

could differ from those estimates. A5

NOTE 2- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABRILITY y / .
ko
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting A,"--\_ "

Comparisons to budget are presented for the General Fund and Spﬁ:‘;ijl'i{ev;mé Funds. The operating giget is adopted by activity
for the General Fund and by activity for the Special Revenue fygis. Budgets for the General and Specral R#tenue funds are adopted
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting pri}:-\'::f-_rvl&‘l‘(GAAP). v revisions that alter the'tﬁ.éiﬁspagﬁwres of any
fund must be approved by the Township Board. Budgetedsathioi; i dee as originadig.adopted, or as amended ¥ £ Township
Board. b 9 IS '

I

. A
NOTE3 - DETAJLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS '

.y

Deposits and Invegtments roch
A reconciliation of cash and investments as sho'wil i‘ﬂiiﬁﬂi‘ﬂﬁic‘ﬁnancial statement'é.-qé"iﬁiﬂa;‘?nship’s deposits and investments is as
follows: R \ -
| _ Carrying
Government-wide Financial Statement Captions: o = " Amount
Cash and cash equivalents \ & e 3 5221,155
Fiduciary Fund Financigh&ilissent Captions: W .
Cash and cash equilenis < " ‘ 649.195
/tl ." o o i
Total /(f o \ N . $M_ =
Deposits R _ : $ 5,870,176
Cash on hand - = v 174
.Investment and D‘tm,ﬁlsi

dpterest Rate Risk. State 'mwkzmlts the eiﬂg;__qu-'r.:‘iie investments and the maturities of some of the allowable investments as identified
“ Blow. The Township’ img@iient policsidoes not have specific limits in excess of state law on investment maturitics as a means of

‘Wisiiping its exposure to fillf thlue lossés arising from increasing interest rates. The maturity dates for each investment are
ide:lllid above for investrigitheld at year end.

Credit R'Q.'* . Siate law limits javestments to specific government securities, certificates of deposits and bank accounts with qualified
financial inslisns, cogghtercial paper with specific maximum maturities and ratings when purchased, bankers acceptances of
specific financid Wis'itiitaons, qualified mutual funds and qualified external investment pools as identified below. The Township’s
investment policy s not have specific limits in excess of state law on investment credit. The ratings for each investment are
identified above fi¥ mvestments held at year end.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. The Township had $5,941,036 deposited with local financial institutions at March 31, 2016 with 2
carrying value of $5,870,176. The Township has $3,000,637 invested in the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry which is fully
insured. Of the remaining balance and interpreting the FDIC insurance coverage of $250,000 of demand deposits and $250,000 of
time deposits per financial institution, the Township had $2,367,692 of uninsured deposits at March 31, 2016,
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Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016

Custedial Credit Risk — Investments, For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Township will niot be able to recover the value of its investments or collatex# securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. State law does not require and the Township does not have a policy %ﬁmt custodial credit risk, Of the
investments listed above, there is not custodial credit risk as these investments are uncy rized as o credit risk.

tration of credit risk as identified
concentration of credit risk. More
xcar end are reported above.

Concentration of Credit Risk. State law limits allowable investments but does nc\ta'l
below. The Township’s investment policy does not have specific limits in ex
than 3 percent of the Township’s investments are in U.S. Treasury securities

(1) Bonds, securities, other obligations and repurchase agree;;n&'g of the Umted States, or an agency W inkrumentality of the
United States. N s F

(2) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts o-'ﬂ 0si ’_,hof a qualified financial

3) Commerc1a1 paper rated at the time of purchase within the two hlg ﬂ ' mﬁcatlons established by not less than two

(5) In bankers’ acceptances of United States

(6) Obligations of the State of Michigan and its itica 'ons that, at the tlm._? -purchase are rated as investment
grade by at least one standard rating service. - - i

@) : i  thiauthority to purchase only investment vehicles

(8) External inw s 8 5 i o1 i $20 as amended through December 31, 1997,

The Township Bozd ized (o desi itories fa Tenship funds, and to determine that the funds are invested in
accordance with Sta ichi B

Govisfiment. Activities Business Activities

$ 29,116

52,402

81518
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Capital Assets
12/31/15 Additions Qel ions 12/31/16
Governmental Activities: ro N
Capital assets not being depreciated - Land $18.514981 § £, 8 - $18.,514.981
Capital assets being depreciated: g N
Buildings and Improvements 400,858 A A - 400,858
Vehicles and Equipment 2,523.781 Wi :5 54,107 o - 2917888
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,924,639 SOA94,107 T e - 3,318,746
Less Accumulated Depreciation: S :".'.‘ 3
Buildings and improvements (140,;,;?) " (11,246) . ‘;; " (152,173)
Vehicles and Equipment (1.638390) (188.600) T (1,863,890)
Total accumulated depreciation _(,l ol ‘4717) £199.846) L f2.016.063)
(2 A
! Y "2k e
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,10851 e mg{g‘\ - A-1.302.683
w 4 - L
Intangible Assets 39304 - - 39,304
Less Accumulated Depreciation {39.304) "L X - - {39.304)
N
Total intangible assets - e - - -
Governmental Activities s
Capital Assets, Net $1905 8. $ 104265 § . $19.817,664
L 19/31/15 __{Wii:ions Deletions 12/31/16
Business-type Activities:# o
Capital assets not bem.-; dtp‘m:.s:cv - I.rmd s, 5690 $ 108900 $ - 3 114,590
Capital assets bdng GofEigced I _
Buildings and Impro 'v‘HH'rn‘uR » - 61,450 - 61,450
Sewer and Water Sys CIHg {194,075 . - 8,194,075
Tower 0 269,250 - 269,250
Faguipment - : 44,049 - - 44,049
Tg:ﬂ* vapital assetd Lt i}uaf!reciﬂll:ﬂ: 8.507.374 61.450 - 8.568.824
L;m Accumulated Depréaiump_
Huildings and Improveiqm'u- - (71) - 71
" Syver and Water System?. (2,291,085)  (164,290) - (2,455,375)
Towies K (180,222) (9,969) - (190,191)
Eqtijnkat 1 (41,596) (950) - {42.546)
Total accm.‘m!qu deprematlon (2,512,903) (175.980) - (2,688.883)
Total busmess—’tw\— fisets beu.,l deprecmted net 5994471 (114,530) 5.879.941
a4
Business-type Activiii v;.dpltal Assets, Net $ 6000161 § (5630) 8 - $5,994,531

o

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 77,359
Public Safety 122,487
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities § 199,846
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Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfind receivables and payables as of March 31, 2016 is as follows:

P
P

Future dcbt'am'i.u:e-maturity papipents at March 31, 2016 were as follows:

Governmental Activities

March 38 Principal

Due From Due (ﬁ
4 i V

General $ 3073 Fiduciary G N8, 23869

Purchase of Development Rights 22,484  Water Fund ! " 209,375

Senior Center 823 Light House Gift Shop', a7

Pellizari Natural Area 562 e '

Sewer Fund 209.375 y

$ 236317 y i, X 236,317

Long-term Debt ) 3 / ~,. "
A summary of bond and contract transactions for the year ended March 31, ?.1;5- ‘ a_g'follows:
Governmental Activities : h

Balauni L Balance Due Within

IF{4] A #ditions Reductms . _2-12/31/16 One Year
PDR Bond Series 2005 $ 375008 §° S $ 270,006 $3,480,000  § 415000
Center Park Rd. Bond Series 2009 1,040,008 T %400&')0 800,000 255,000
General Obligation Linyited Tax ' W

Refunding 2013 3,580,000 - W 370,000 3,210,000 390,000
Unamortized Interest on 20015 &

Advance Refundisy (147.513) - {18.439) (129.074) -
Total Governme:ital Acijéifies 3 8222487 § _...0- 8 861561  $7,360.926 $ 1.060,000
Business Type Activitics
Coups WSS ulis 2003 Bond £ 5, Ty - % 5,714 $ - 3 -
Cailikity Wastewates 200 FBond 138,698 - 14,353 124,345 14,944

#Sywer and Water 200 Bomd 603,000 - 45,000 558,000 45,000
mking Water 2008 Boirl 1875000 - 115,000 1,755,000 115,000
Sewer and Water 2012 Bond, L. 398573 - 65,253 §33.320 63.998

Business-type Activities

—Interest Total Principal _Interest

2017 $1,015000 § 222298 § 1,237,298 § 238967 § 74,330
2018 1,085,000 191,270 1,276,270 262,092 68,107
2019 1,160,000 157,444 1,317,444 261,657 61,212
2020 2,395,000 208,596 2,603,596 267,497 48,089
2021 1,730,000 120,582 1,850,582 1,125,452 146,315
2022 - 2028 - - - 665.000 33.003
Total $7385000 $__900.190 § 8285190 § 2,820,665 § 431,056
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$ 313,297
330,199
322,869
315,586
1,271,767
—608.003
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NOTE 4 -

Peninsula Township
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2016
OTHER INFORMATION
Pro Taxes
Township property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of Decemkg# s are levied December 1 and are due

without penalty on or before February 14. These tax bills include the Township’s r 7
Traverse County and the school districts within the Township boundaries.

Real property taxes not collected as of March 1 are turned over to Grand T&%Comty for collec )
100% for the delinquent taxes. Collection of delinquent personal propﬂ’tf taxes remains the responsibilig 4 e

Inventories

Peninsula Township does not maintain a substantial inventory of supphi&s . i Pl aje as needed, and the
items recorded as expenses when purchased. ¥

Pension Plans
Defined Contribution Pension

§ées under contract with the John
itlons adopied by Board resolutions.

The Township participates in a defined contribution pe
Hancock Life Insurance Company. Listed below is a suy

A. Eligjbility Requirements

1. Attained age of 18

total contribution for the plan year was $47,106. Covered payroll for the year was $362,354 with total payroll
,898. The plan was funded at the required contribution amount.

During the audit year, i
for all employees of $27.
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Joint Venture

A
The Township entered into a master sewer agreement effective July 1, 1987 through June BOG,dT:&iﬁjksupplmented July 1, 1993,
August 13, 1998, and March 31, 2003 with the additions of the City of Traverse City, the Tégrr{ships of Peninsula, East Bay, and Acme
in Grand Traverse County, the Township of Elmwood in Leelanau County and with Grasi! “raverse County. This master sewer
agreement defines the allocation of costs and establishes certain rights and responsibiligesestti respect to the Wastewater Treatment
Plant. Grand Traverse County is the owner of the Treatment Plant and the City of Tiﬁ’érsc st #ithe owner of all the nulti-user
facilities. Ownership of the Treatment Plant will revert to the City of Traverse iﬁﬂ%;l:en certaimeBezils issued by Grand Traverse

County are retired. e,

The City of Traverse City is the exclusive manager of the plant for the Jfpriefit of it2lf and the Townshipr.-3%the exclusive manager,
the City of Traverse City has the obligation to fully inform and advisigthe Townships as to the Treatment Pz ‘E‘-qperations and the
Townships shall have the right to comment on all matters connectiith the admirfistration of the plant. Prior'ssitiee. 38; the City of
Traverse City shall submit a proposed budget for the operatiog:ror e keatment P1 r the year commencing i ¥ The Townships

have thirty days in which to comment on the proposed budget.

Party
City of Traverse City
Garfield Township
East Bay Township
Elmwood Township
Acme Township
Peninsula Township

/s through the Treatment Plant. The Township’s portion of Treatment

Principal Interest
$ 15,222 $ 4,496
15,738 3,879
16,426 3,235
17,200 2,563
17,914 1,930
37.556 1.450

3 120056 § _ 17.553
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Commitments and Contingencies

The Township is contingently liable in connection with bonds issued to construct and operate a wiite water treatment septage plant in
Grand Traverse County. It currently appears that the facility may begin to operate at a deficit, iase the Township and other
guarantors would be required to fund the operating deficit. At the present time, it is not & whether such a deficit will occur, but if
the Township is ultimately required to provide funding, it will be in the form of a loan 1ayment provisions.

In addition, in the normal course of operations, the Township becomes a party to )2%9
counsel and Township management, the ultimate resolution of such matters w111 i’i@
the Township. ;

lawsuits. In the opinion of the legal
#ffect on the financial position of

Risk Management

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts;.+
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the audit wim & ship addr these risks through tht

commercial insurance through Municipal Underwriters of Michigan. Wils rﬁqﬁ;&m reduction of insura)
prior years nor have the amounts of any settlements exceeded insurance ge. <

f, damage to; @d destruction of assets, =iz angomissions;

ase of
coverage from

Prior Period Adjustments

During the current year, it was determined that cer'y! i e N  praperly recorded. To correct this error, the
beginning balance of the General Fund of $725,954, &3 wiizin sl

It was determined that bonds on the Water Fund were&%mate ; ¢ this error, the héinning balance of the Water Fund of
$1,928,272, as originally reported, was reduced to $1,772 - —_
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Peninsula Township Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual Page 1
General Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Revenues Original Final {Unfavorable)
Taxes:
Property Taxes $ 412,000 $ % 438,528 8§ 26,528

Penaities and Interest on Taxes
Licenses and Permits:

Permits and Fees
State Grants:

State Shared Revenues
Charges for Services:

Summer Tax Collection Fees
Interest and Rents:

Interest
Other:

Refunds and Reimbursements

Sale of Fixed Assets

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Legislative:

Township Board:
Salaries and Wages
Office Supplies
Audit and Accounting
Legal Fees
Contract Services

Dues and Membeti
Mileage .

Total Legislative .

General Government: ~
Township Supervisor:
Salaries and Wages
Office Supplies
Office Equipment
Mileage Reimbursement
Education

Total

. 5431 931

10,760

(6.765)

,500)
738

36,443 36,443

9,875 (125)
11.770 6.770

941,040 73.780

21,036 -
126 -
2,319 -
10,097 -
2,280 -
5,990 -
72 -
1,417 -
6.723 -

50,060 1477

50,060 1477

48,068 48,968 49.593 (625)

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Peninsula Township Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual Page 2
General Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)

Expenditures (Continued

General Government:

Executive Activities:
Salaries and Wages -
Office Supplies -
Contract Services -
Telephone
Dues and Memberships
Other
Total
Elections:
Salaries and Wages
Office Supplies
Contract Services
Telephone
Mileage Reimbursement 250 -
Publishing 74 -
Education and Training _ 1625 -
Total 20.679 1,395
Assessor:
Salaries and Wages 57,716 -
Office Supplies 861 -
Legal Fees 2,171 -
Computer Services 96 -
Assessing Services 1,663 -
Telephone : r 704 -
Mileage Reimbursagent - 1,082 -
il ki 102 -
250 -
824 -
502 -
1412 -
67,383 925
Clerk: -
Salaries and Wage: - . 68,936 -
Office Supplies - - 769 -
Software Support - - 63 -
Contract Services - - 2,245 -
Telephone - - 295 -
Dues and Subscriptions - - 635 -
Mileage - . 598 -
Education - - 1,673 -
Total 75,336 75.336 75214 122

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township Schedule |
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual Page 3
General Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Expenditures (Continued) Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
General Government {Continued):
Board of Review:

Salaries and Wages =
Office Supplies -
Publishing -
Total . h 1433
Treasurer:
Salaries and Wages
Office Supplies -
Contract Services -
Telephone -
Mileage Reimbursement =
Printing and Publishing
Dues and Subscriptions >
Other -
Total 639
Township Hall and Grounds:
Operating Supplies -
Contract Services - 28,562 .
Cemetery Sexton - 5,400 *
Electricity - 4,780 -
Heat 2,421 -
Maintenance and Repairs - 21.773 -
Total 66.200 63,635 2,565
Total General Goverr 409,708 402,513 7.195
Public Safety:
ininistrator/Planner:
il - 56,802 -
- 685 -
- 333 -
Contract Servite: = - - 9,901 -
Telephone - - 578 -
Mileage - - 679 -
Education - - 771 -
Total 64.852 70,452 69.749 703

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township Schedule 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual Page 4
General Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Expenditures (Continued} Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
Planning Commission: '
Salaries and Wages - A 04,330 -
Office Supplies - r- 33 -
Legal Fees - N 9,068 -
Contract Services - y A 9,125 -
Dues and Subscriptions - y 4 573 -
Printing and Publishing . - - 1,560 -
Education 4 . 660 -
Total 28 340 4,101
Zoning Board of Appeals:
Salaries and Wages 32377 \ -
Office Supplies 291 \ -
Legal Fees 18,096 -
Contract Services 3 ' 946 -
Telephone = & - 475 -
Mileage - - 214 -
Dues and Subscriptions - - - 465 -
Printing and Publishing . - - 2,899 -
Education . - - 292 -
Total N Aany . 6128 56,055 5,203
Total Public Safety - 148660 L T6L160 151,153 10,007
Other: ' " .
Employee Health Insurance’ 5 90,500 90,500 86,530 3,970
Pension TA5M00 47,200 47,106 94
Social Security/Medicare : L 4,000 28,500 29,170 (670)
Insurance A o 20,000 20.000 19.717 283
Total 196,000 186,200 182,523 3677
Capital Outlay h h — 9,500 9.500 12,609 (3.109)
7 '
Total Expersditiiys N 814.105 818,105 798,858 19.247
Excess Revenues \E 4 jenditures) 53,155 49.155 142,182 93.027
Other Financing Sou;ésrd Aikas)
Operating Transfers In v 30,000 30,000 48,078 18,078
Operating Transfers (Out) (36.200) (36.200) (35.000) 1,200
Total (6,200) (6,.200) 13.078 19.278
Excess Reverues (Expenditures) azgt
Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 46955 % 42955 155,260 112
Fund Balance — Beginning of Year 725,954
Prior Period Adjustment 26418
Fund Balance — End of Year $ 907,632

The Netes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
Fire Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final .

Revenugs

Taxes: d
Property Taxes $ 689900 § 6N
Charges for Services: '
Ambulance and Fire Service
Interest and Renis:
Interest
Other:
Contributions
Sale of Fixed Assets
Refunds and Reimbursements

Schedule 2

Variance
Favorable

{Unfavorablc)

S (8,055)

(9,191)

Total 762,828

Expenditures

Salaries and Wages 367,588
Workers Compensation 45,848
Social Security and Medicare 27,890
Benefits g 34,148
Pension - 17,075
Supplies - 14,040
Public Utilities - 12,521
Gas and Qil - 10,878
Contract Services - 32,824
Telephone - 6,281
Maintenance and Repairs - 62,069
Other - 1,412
Printing and Publishing . 1,151
Uniforms - 71,956

- 5,789

- 2,754

- 101

. 5,687

- 361,735

869.346 869,346 1.017.747

$§ (139.196) $ (139,19%) (254,919)

Fund Balance — Beginning of 640.703
Fund Balance — End of Year § 385784

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Peninsula Township Schedule 3
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Acmal
Purchase of Development Rights Fund
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Unfavorable

Revenues

Taxes:
Property Taxes
Interest and Rents:
Interest

Total

Expenditures
7,446 -

Operating Expenditures
Debt Service 906,584 -
Total 1,519.750 914,030 603,720

226941 8 611,331
1,490,846

$1,717.787

Excess Revenues (Expenditures)

Fund Balance — Beginning of Year

Fund Balance — End of Year

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township Schedule 6
Combining Statement of Net Position
Non Major Enterprise Funds
March 31, 2016
Special Revenue
Lighthouse Harbor Total
Tower Lighthouse Giftshop Beach Road¢ Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Fund ¢ Fund Funds
Assets :
Current Assets:
Cash in Bank $ 474,616 $ 19,983 $ 651,594
Prepaids - - 124
Total Current Assets 474,616 19,983 S 651718
Non-Current Assets: ‘.
Depreciable Capital Assets (Net) 187.961 60.679 7.194
Total Assets $ 662,577 $ 80,662 § 33474 $§ 907,552
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable - § 507
Due to Other Funds - 3.073
Total Current Liabilities - - 3.580
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital As - 7,194 195,155
Unrestricted 23.486 26,280 708,817
Total Net Position 23,486 33474 903,972
Total Liabilities 3 23486 $ 33474 § 907,552

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Peninsula Township

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non Major Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Special Revenue

Lighthouse Harbor
Tower Lighthouse Giftshop Beach Ro
Fund Fund Fund Fund*

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Rental Income $ 123,015 $ -
Program Revenues - 60,823
Total Operating Revenues 123,015 60,823

Expenditures

Schedule 7

Total
Enterprise
Funds

Contract Services 239 29,937 29 54,562
Depreciation 9.969 950 11.690
Total 10.208 979 66,252
Operating Income (Loss) 112.807 (979) 163.208
Non Operating Revenues
Interest Income 118 75 3,827
Transfers In - - 83,287
Net Non Operating Revenues
(Expenses) 118 75 89.114
Change in Net Position 118 (504) 252,322
23,368 34,378 651.650
$ 2348 § 33474 § 903,972

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township Schedule 8
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Non Major Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016
Special Revenue .
Lighthouse Harbor 4 Uusbgactor Total
Tower Lighthouse Giftshop Beach Roads .~  Statitn Enterprise
TFund Fund Fund Fundg = Fund Funds
Ell!eraﬁng Activities ‘1-’;";” A - \':‘)
-4 .

Collections of Charges for Services $ - $ 60,823 § 43277 ${f-,¢_-.-.1i - £ - $ 104,100

Collections of Rental Income 123,015 - 2,345 < "‘\_k - = - 125,360

Collections of Interest 3,423 80 130 5, V118 25 3,827

Deduct Expenses Using Cash f > -
and Cash Equivalents (239) (29.994) #:084) . S0 (51.547)

A [ b = P
Net Cash Flow from y . X N ol il
Operating Activities 126,199 30,909 pLE PR 3] 45 . 181.740
-4 ¢

Capital Financing Activities K

Acquisition of Capital Assets (108.901) ‘ :‘ﬁg,;g) - -_ = = (170,351}

Non Capital Financing Activities | ' .

Transfers In (Ouf) 5.385 Y e, & - 85.287
Net Cash Flow Provided by - ! ¥ : 4
(used) by Financing Activities - ~ 3385 - . 79902 - - - 85287

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash .4 22665 % (30,541) 104371 118 45 96,676

Balance of Cash — Beginningof Yooy, 451933 | 50524 __ h.2882 23,368 26,111 554,918

Balance of Cash — End of Year $ 4 T i_-:..l D3i0.983  § 5i07,353 § 23486 § 26156 § 651594

! - - — 7.’,,"/}

Net Income (I g NS5 1628 BF 30,195 § 21,396 § 118§ (904) $ 167,035
Add Eleprecistion and Amortizat.inm_ ! N 9,969 . 7 71 - 950 11,690
Dgtredss {{ierease) in Prepaids 3 w - - - (1) N
Increase (I38:¢:3¢) in Payables A - 4 (57 3.073 - - 3,016
Net Cash Flow Sl '

Operating Activitgy 3 186,199 $ 30509 §__ 24469 § 118 $ 45 $_ 181,740

The Notes to the Bagic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township Schedule 9
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
March 31, 2016

Agency
Trust Tax Library Trust Total
and Agency Collection and Agency Payroll Fiduciary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Cash in Bank § 44918 $ 65487 $ 516,199 649.195

Total Assets $ 44918
Liabilities

Due to Other Governments $ 21,049
Due to Other Funds 23,869

Undistributed Taxes and Interest -

Total Liabilities

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Peninsula Township Schedule 10
2015 Property Tax Levy and Collections
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Millage Adjusted Returned
Rate Levy 1 ollected Delinguent

$3,70757 $ 83944

County 4.9838
Commission on the Aging 0.6000 367,048 13,332
BATA 0.3454 : 214,693 4277
State Education 6.0000 2 é ) 65,507
School Distriet: e

Traverse City 21.1000 % 5,&4,737 179,272
Intermediate School District 2.931F 0700 858,417 36,302
Community College 12794,204 48,964
District Library 697,636 24,452
Township: A e

General ¥ 404,867

Fire Protection 662,802

Police 79,514 2,888

Center Road Park 290,339 10,546

Purchase of Development Rights 1,105,375 40,151
Special Assessments 17,579 1,818
Property Tax Administration Fees -
Total § 548,588

Percent of Levy Collected

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PENINSULA TOWNSHIP

13235 Center Road, Traverse City MI 49686
Ph: 231.223.7322 Fax:231.223.7117
www.peninsulatownship.com

Contract for PDR—Purchase of
Development Rights Monitoring—2016

This contract is with Gilbert Uithol IIT and Peninsula Township to monitor PDR contracts for the year
ending 12/31/16.

There are 112 parcels with PDR conservation casements. Monitoring shall start by October 1, 2016 and
all PDR parcels must be monitored and paper work completed prior to 12/31/2016. There are 15
easements where Farm and Ranch Lands Protection Program dollars were used for the PDR. These
parcels must be completed and associated paper work submitted to the appropriate government office
prior to 11/1/2016.

The township will pay $43 per parcel for each of the 112 parcels. This includes all field and in-office
work. Mr. Uithol will have the use of a township office, copy machine, paper, phones, stamps, and
computer while completing the task. He will follow a payment schedule of 50% down and 50% upon
completion of the required materials for the task.

The total amount of this contract is $4816.00 upon completion and submission of the monitoring reports.

Progress reports will be provided by November 4, 2016 for the Township Board’s November 11, 2016
meeting. Final report is due December 6, 2016, for the Township Board’s December 13, 2016 meeting.

Gilbert Uithol IIT Rob Manigold, Township Supervisor

Dated Dated
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PENINSULA TOWNSE

13235 Center Road; Fraverse City MI 49686
Ph: 231.223.73227 -Fax: 231.223.7117
www.peninstlatownship.com

Contract for PDR — Purchase of Development Rights Monitoring — 2015

This contract is with Gilbert Uithol IIf and Peninsula Township to monitor PDR contracts for the year ending
12/31/15.

There are 112 parcels with PDR conservation easements. Monitoring shall start by September 1, 2015 and all
PDR parcels must be monitored and paper work completed prior to 10/31/15. There are 15 easements where
Farm and Ranch Lands Protection Program dollars were used for the PDR. These parcels must be completed
and associated paper work submitted to the appropriate government office prior to the 11/2/15 due date.

The Township will pay $40 per parcel for each of the 112 parcels. This includes all field and in-office work.
Mr. Uithol will have the use of a township office, copy machine, paper, phones and computer while completing
the task.

The total amount of this contract is $4480 upon completion of the monitoring reports.

Progress reports will be provided by October 5, 2015 for the Township Board’s October 13, 2015 meeting.
Final report is due November 2, 2015 for the Township Board’s November 10, 2015 meeting.

L6l Cocmp QO A

Gilbert Uithol III Pete Correia, Township Supervisor

1-2|-[§ 21 /15

Dated Daed [




Peninsula Township

Invoice Approval Report

Page:

1/1

09/21/2016 09:08 AM

VENDOR DESCRIPTION/DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT
YOUNG, GRAHAM, ELSENHEIMER AUGUST 2016 $30.00
591-000-801.000 30.00
YOUNG, GRAHAM, ELSENHEIMER AUGUST 2016 SEWER $30.00
590-000-801.000 30.00
YOUNG, GRAHAM, ELSENHEIMER AUGUST 2016 $10,393.50
101-101-967.BMR 744.00
101-101-801.KAH 31.00
101-101-801.000 1,643.00
101-209-801.000 62.00
101-101-801.000 201.50
206-000-801.000 62.00
101-101-801.000 62.00
101-209-801.000 46.50
101-101-801.KAH 46.50
101-209-801.000 31.00
101-101-801.KAH 31.00
101-410-801.000 584.00
101-101-801.000 1,208.00
297-000-801.000 10.00
101-101-801.000 20.00
101-400-801.000 20.00
101-420-801.000 40.00
206-000-801.000 20.00
208-751-801.000 30.00
101-410-801.000 3,983.50
101-101-801.000 465.00
101-410-801.000 124.00
101-420-801.000 914.50
101-101-801.000 8.00

Total:

$10,453.50



YOUNG, GRAHAM, ELSENHEIMER & WENDLING, P.C.
Aftorneys at Law
P.O. Box 398
Bellaire, Ml 49615

(231) 533-8635

" Invoice submitted to:
Peninsula Township

Monica A. Hoffman, Clerk
13235 Center Road
Traverse City, Ml 49686

September 09, 2016

Invoice # 19618

Professional Services

Amount
Braemar Estates SAD
8/1/2016 reviewed emails from Sally regarding Buchan signing easement and Old Mission Estates 31.00
easement
8/3/2018 draft memo regarding reascns for tabling public hearing and continuing it at a later date; draft 139.50
language for public hearing on agenda; email to Sally and Monica regarding memo and
language for agenda
telephone call from Mrs. Soutear regarding memo to table and continue public hearing 46.50
telephone call from attorney Quandt regarding special assessment district 31.00
reviewed email with attachment from Sally to Joe Quandt regarding Olivia Lagina Trust 15.50
8/4/2016 reviewed email from Sally regarding Ben Buchan voicemail 31.00
reviewed email from Joe Quandt and email from Jim Cook regarding remaining issues 46.50
8/5/2016 reviewed email from Joe Quandt regarding public hearing; reviewed email from Jim Cook 31.00
regarding calculations for proposed infrastructure in county road right-of-way
8/11/2016 call with Scott Conaway regarding authorized signatories and address of Association 31.00
email Sally Old Mission Estates grant of easement 31.00
8/18/2016 reviewed email and attachment from Brian Boals with revised project cost information 31.00
reviewed series of emails from Joe Quandt and Jim Cook regarding special assessment 46.50

district and request for update on costs related to culverts on road commission right-of-way



Peninsula Township Page 2

Amount
8/22/2016 reviewed series of emails from Scott Conaway, Joe Quandt and Jim Cook regarding special 31.00
assessment district
8/26/2016 revised legal notice 62.00
letter to Sally regarding road commission's percentage of assessment 108.50
8/30/2016 reviewed road commission letter regarding changes to the special assessment district 31.00
engineering plans and a possible amendment to the agreement between the road
commission and township
SUBTOTAL: [OVION T, L 744.00]

Kahn lawsuit Y,N\¥

8/30/2016 received and reviewed copy of email from attorney Millar regarding Kahn lawsuit 6 \ Qb() \ . 31.00
“

1O \

SUBTOTAL: ‘ﬁP‘ Yy ——31.00]
Komendera lawsuit
8/3/2016 e-file appearance in the Michigan Supreme Court 31.00
8/4/2016 brief review of appellant's appeal to Michigan Supreme Court, copy to client 77.50
8/17/2016 received and reviewed appearance of attorney Settles 31.00
8/23/2016 begin review of documents and drafting of response brief to appellants request for leave to 465.00
appeal to the state supreme court
8/24/2016 complete draft of response brief to appellants brief requesting leave to appeal to the state 465.00
supreme court
8/25/2016 complete editing of brief, go through and make sure exhibits are correct and up to date and 542 50
prepare to file brief in response to appellants request for leave to appeal to the state supreme
court

8/26/2016 e-file response brief and exhibits 31.00

w80 )

SUBTOTAL: \% 1,643.00]

101209 86

8/3/2016 telephone call from attorney Hullman concerning Hovey property matter; telephone call to \62.00
township assessor regarding matter; telephone call to attorney Hullman, left message

Miscellaneous/General

8/7/2016 email from attorney Settles with copy of letter sent to township which alleges ethics policy 201.50
violation; reviewed ethics policy; interoffice conference regarding legal research to be done -~

1016 BN



Peninsula Township Page 3

Amount

8/10/2016 email from city attorney regarding status of agreement for city fire helping township fire with &WZ .00
fire protection review and report; reply to city attorney 2@(0

8/12f2016 legal research regarding code of ethics and trustee being fair and impartial; email to JGY 62.00
regarding memos written to township regarding this and Judge Roger's analysis of code of ~
ethics (WO o180

8/22/2016 received and reviewed email from attorney Gersch regarding Hovey property; telephone call 46 50
to township assessor regarding matter 1(_)\ %(
return telephone call to atterney Millar regarding land division lawsuits lo \ [O\ 80‘ W - 46.50
received and reviewed copy of email from township assessor regarding Hovey property %\ -31.00
received and reviewed email from attorney Gersch regarding matter l

8/30/2016 received and reviewed copy of email from trustee Rosi to attorney Millar regarding Kahn 50\\<“§*
lawsuit \O

SUBTOTAL: [ 542.50]

Planning Commission

8/15/2016 review of draft ordinance language from McKenna, detailed memo regarding same 232.50
8/22/2016 prepare for and attend planning commission meeting 356.50
SUBTOTAL: 1 O‘QL{\ \Dw -=-589.00}

Prosecuting Attoreny [awsuit

8/17f2016 received and reviewed email from attorney Millar regarding Kahn motion to consolidate cases: 46.50
telephone call to attorney Millar regarding matter, left message

8/24/2016 received and reviewed email from attorney Millar regarding prosecuting attorney lawsuit; 62.00
telephone call to attorney Millar regarding matter, left message; telephone call from attorney
Millar regarding matter; telephone call to township clerk regarding matter

8/25/2016 telephone call to township clerk regarding prosecuting attorney lawsuit; email to township 46.50
clerk and attorney Millar regarding answer to lawsuit
received and reviewed email from attorney Millar concerning prosecuting attorney lawsuit 31.00
received and reviewed email from attorney Millar with correspondence from prosecuting 48.50

attorney regarding extension to file answer; telephone call to attorney Millar regarding filing the
responsive pleadings

8/26/2016 return telephone call to insurance attorney regarding coverage concerning prosecuting 542.50
attorney lawsuit; prepare answer with affirmative defenses; prepare response to motion to
consolidate; telephone call to township assessor regarding matter; file and serve pleadings



Peninsula Township Page 4

Amount
8/26/2016 received and reviewed email from attorney Millar deeds and briefs concerning case 93.00
8/29/2016 appearance in court for motion to consolidate; meeting with prosecuting attorney and attorney 310.00
Millar concerning settlement
8/30/2016 received and reviewed email from attorney Millar regarding prosecuting attorney lawsuit; 31.00
telephone call to attorney Millar regarding matter, left message ]C)\ \0\ %\

SUBTOTAL: La [ > 1,209.00]
2XTNoco 8 > a
Telephone Retainer lo‘ [ 0] 60, 20 uC?OM)ﬁ)

8/31/2016 September 1 - 30, 2016 i6) o0 8ol - y o oD BO 200.00

SUBTOTAL: TR lisisally 40 . 200001
The 81 Condominium 2.5 EOTON 1O
151 B0V - 30
8/2/2016 email from Settles with fire protection report from Taylor; forward this report to Randy and 325.50

Michelle; email from Boals regarding his engineering report, the fire access road and private
road standards and our fire protection report; reply to Boals; email from Michelle with notice of
hearing; review notice; email from Settles regarding new standard and letter to editor from
Trustee; reply to Settles; email to Michelle regarding new standard, fire access road and
private road standards and ethics issue; email from Settles with letter to editor; telephone call
from Settles regarding letter to editor, new standard and hearings

8/3/2016 telephone call from attorney Settles regarding application for leave to Supreme Court and 62.00
applicable court rules

reviewed township subdivision control ordinance; reviewed state statute; reviewed checklist 496.00
for plat approval; reviewed staff report and notice of hearing; prepare for planning commission
hearing on preliminary plat

8/9/2016 reviewed emails and requests for materials from Jim regarding The 81 and attorney Settles 31.00
letter regarding ethics policy; telephone call to Jim regarding same
8/10/2016 email from planner with township's fire protection report; reviewed report; telephone call from 155.00
Setiles regarding their expert revising their report
8/11/2016 reviewed email from Settles to planner with email from GTCRC regarding fire access road 31.00
8/14/2016 reviewed planning commission agenda packet for planning commission meeting including 589.00

materials related to O'Grady subdivision and preliminary plat; meeting with planner regarding
incomplete information for preliminary plat review; reviewed township subdivision control
ordinance and Land Division Act regarding pre-preliminary hearing; attend public hearing with
planning commission regarding subdivision

reviewed report from township engineer regarding fire access road 62.00



Peninsula Township Page 5

Amount

8/16/2016 reviewed email from attorney Settles to planner with revised independent fire protection 155.00
report; reviewed report; telephone call from planner regarding new report, supplemental report
from fire chief and her draft of revised findings of fact

8/19/2016 telephone call from attorney Settles regarding proposed findings of fact - he will send 341.00
comments via email; email from planner with supplement drawings for fire access road; reply
to planner; reviewed email from Settles; reviewed agenda packet and draft findings of fact

8/20/2016 reviewed notes from review of findings of fact; email to Settles and planner regarding 124.00
proposed findings of fact and whether more clarity is needed

8/22/2016 email from attorney Settles regarding changes to findings of fact and replying to my email; 294 50
email from planner with SESC permit just filed and with question; reply to planner answering
her question; reviewed email from planner to board members with the new document;
telephone call to planner regarding changing findings of fact to make clear that only the issues
remanded by the judge are being considered; telephone calf from attorney Settles regarding
presence of township engineer; reviewed email from board member with a question about
cul-de-sac and fire ¢code; reviewed both reports of fire chief

8123712016 meeting with planner; reviewed proposed findings of fact made by planner; reviewed letters 1,085.00
from public; reviewed proposed findings of fact made by Howard and report from Groebel;
meeting with fire chief regarding width of road to water and IFC; recehecked report from
applicant's fire expert to see if road width addressed; multiple telephone calls with Settles
regarding procedural issues in light of road width and failure of anyone to address justification
for smaller road width; attend public hearing

8/24/2016 telephone call to attorney Settles regarding special meeting for remand issues once applicant 170.50
submits new information regarding road width; email from Settles with planner's email to him
regarding new zoning provisions and applicability of new provision to project in context of
judge's decision and applicable law; telephone conference with Settles regarding need to
review court decision

8/25/2016 email from Seittles regarding zoning ordinance amendment not being an issue in the planned £62.00
unit development; reply to Settles

SUBTOTAL: [ 3,983.50]

jol qioes!

Township Board

8/9/2016 prepare for and attend township board meeting &) [ 855\ 356.50

8/11/2016 memo to township board regarding master plan and zoning ordinance \ 108.50

SUBTOTAL: [ \v 465.00]

Vineyard Ridge

8/22/2016 letter to Michelle answering questions regarding special use permit 127 124.00



Peninsula Township

Page 6

Amount
| [olH10%°
SUBTOTAL; [ 124.00]
Zoning Matters
8/1/2016 two emails from attorney Steve Fox regarding Bonobo winery submission of request for guest 46.50
activity permit; telephone call to Fox regarding issues pertaining to same
8/2/2016 email from attorney Greg Luyt with attachments regarding Bowerman Lockhart matter, 31.00
respond
8/3/2016 review email from township planner regarding Windsor Court dock usage 31.00
8/4/2016 email from attorney Fox regarding follow up on Oosterhouse request for guest activity uses, 31.00
respond
8/11/2016 prepare for and attend the zoning board of appeals meeting, meet early with Michelle 372.00
regarding same
8/13/2016 review zoning ordinance amendment concerning signs; detailed memo to township planner 263.50
regarding results of review
review email from attorney Gersch concerning former Hovey property; review zoning 46.50
ordinance; email to attorney Gersch concerning matter, with copy to township assessor and
township planner
8/15/2016 received and reviewed copy of email from township planner with comments concerning review 31.00
of sign zoning ordinance amendment
email from attorney Fox regarding information for enforcement of Bonobo, respond 31.00
8/25/2016 received and reviewed email from township planner regarding proposed Windsor Court letter: 31.00
review letter; email to township planner regarding results of review
SUBTOTAL: 1(3(\¥1C¥5E? 914.50]
For professional services rendered $10,445.50

Additional Charges :

Prosecuting Atioreny lawsuit

8/26/2016 13th Circuit Court TrueFiling fee - appearance, answer to complaint and response to motion

SUBTOTAL: [

Total additional charges

10} 101 B9

8.00

8.00]

$8.00



Peninsuta Township Page 7

Amount
Total amount of this bill $10,453.50
Previous balance $6,863.00

Accounts receivable transactions
8/9/2016 Payment - thank you. Check No. 33970 ($6,803.00)
8/9/2016 Payment - thank you. Check No. 1432 {$30.00)
8/9/2016 Payment - thank you. Check No. 2361 {$30.00)
Total payments and adjustments ($6,863.00)
Balance due $10,453.50

The above billing is for services through August 31, 2016.

/0393 5O



Proposal to...
Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County MI

September 15, 2016
Project Contact: Sheri Trotter

Training

General Ledger .NET, Accounts Payable .NET, Cash Receipting .NET, Payroll .NET and Bank Reconciliation Process $3,400
Four days at $850/day
MNew Clerk and Treasurer iraining

Travel Expenses

$1,180

TOTAL, TRAINING AND TRAVEL  $4,580

Signature constitutes an order for products and services as quoted.

Signature Date

Please complete the following for our records:

Project Contact Name, Title

Phone/Fax Email

Mailing Address

City, State, Zip

BS&A Software Questions? Please call Sheri Trotter
14965 Abbey Lane Bath Mi 48808 at the number shown, or email
{855} BSA-SOFT / fax (517) 641-8960 inquiry@bsasoftware.com

bsasoftware.com
Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on quote. Peninsula Township, Grand Traverse County Mi. September 15, 2016,



